AGENDA

P.

1



II.

1.

Iv.

VIIL

AGENDA

City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

April 8, 2019
Regular Meeting — 12:00 Noon

City Hall Meeting Room
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky
Call to Order and Member Roll Call
Opening Prayer - Tom Otto, Faith Baptist Church
Approval of Minutes
e Approval of Meeting Minutes from March 25, 2019 Regular Session

e Approval of Meeting Minutes from April 2, 2019 Special Called Session

Recognitions - Highway 31-W South Lighting Project
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

Hear the Public

e L.J. Pearson — Flags on Highway 100 East
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

¢ Kim Cundall - Support for Baseball League
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

Public Safety

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Neighborhood Watch Program
Presenter: Chief Roger Solomon

Community Services

General Government

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Request for Street Closing for Earth Day Festival

and Cherry Blossom Art and Music Festival Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding Relocation of Space Capsule
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Amendment to Ethics Ordinance
Presenter: Scott Crabtree, City Attorney

P. 2

Pg. 5
Pg. 10

Pg. 12

Pg. 21

Pg. 22

Pg. 30

Pg. 32

Pg. 34

Pg. 37



XII.

XIV.

XV.

Public Services
Utilities
Ordinances
e Second reading of Ordinance No. 2019-009 entitled: Ordinance Repealing Pg. 56
Chapter 53, Chapter 110, Chapter 117 and Section 95.37 of Chapter 95 and
Amending Chapter 114 in the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances
e Possible first reading of Ordinance No. 2019-012 entitled: 4n Ordinance Amending Pg. 59
a Prior Ordinance Establishing a Code of Ethical Conduct Applicable to the Officers
And Employees of the City and City Agencies
Presenter: Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

Executive Session

LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a public agency
where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a specific piece of property to be acquired for public use
or sold by a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b)}

LITIGATION - Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}

BUSINESS — Discussions between a public agency a representative of a business entity concerning a specific
proposal, where open discussions would jeopardize the siting, retention, expansion, or upgrading of the
business {KRS 61.810(1)(g)}

City Attorney Reports

City Manager Reports

Other Commission Business

Adjournment

P. 3



P.

4

MINUTES



MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

March 25, 2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
March 25, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett , Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; F-S Human Rights Commission Director, Donzella Lee; Franklin
Favorite/WFKN media representative, Keith Pyles; City Code Enforcement Officer Kevin
Allen; Judge Executive Mason Barnes; Scott Waste Services representatives Pete Reckard and
Ty Bowman; Ron Huddleston; Boys & Girls Club representatives Jef Goodnight, Cristin
Lanham, Altasia Clay, Lynn Reins, Terry Johnson and Donna Dixon; and, Hunter Graves,
Boys & Girls Club Youth of the Year.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon and offered an opening préyer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
approve the minutes as presented of the March 11, 2019, regular meeting of the Franklin City
Commission; and the March 5, 2019, regular joint City/County meeting.

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 5



RECOGNITION

Lynn Reins, Director of Education for Boys & Girls Club Franklin-Simpson introduced Hunter
Graves, Boys & Girls Club Youth of the Year.

Hunter gave his presentation that won him the title of Boys & Girls Club Youth of the Year
and received a standing ovation from everyone present. His presentation was based on his
personal experiences and focused on the impact that Boys & Girls Club of Franklin Simpson
has provided for his education and social development.

Jef Goodnight, Executive Director of the Boys & Girls Club, spoke about the overall impact

the Club has in our community and thanked the Commission for their continued support. Jef
said Hunter is just one example of the many successes of the youth served at the Club.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to consider approval of a lease of
approximately 35 public parking spaces located on the corner of South High Street and West
Madison Street. The location is available for lease at the rate of $2,000.00 annually with the
City to provide annual sealing and striping of the lot. Mr. Powell indicated the lot would need
increased lighting and the alleyway leading to Cedar Street, which provides easy access to
merchants, would need some improvements. Commissioner Powell recommended parking
hours guidelines and signage also be considered.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
authorize the City Attorney to prepare a lease agreement between the City and the owner of

the parking lot for a one year lease beginning April 1, 2019, and further authorized the Mayor
to sign the lease agreement and any other documents required to secure the lease of the lot.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell asked the Commission for approval to participate in
the reverse Salt Auction which will take place April 24-26, 2019. While there is no obligation
to purchase road salt under this bid, it does provide the City options if availability of road salt
becomes limited.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
approve the City’s participation in the reverse salt auction and further authorizes the Mayor to

sign any and all documents necessary for this purchase.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 6



City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider sponsoring an ordinance to
amending the ordinance which approved the most recent supplement to the City’s Code of
Ordinances. This proposed amendment would repeal three chapters, one section, and amend
one chapter of our current Code of Ordinances. Commissioner Powell and Commissioner
Stewart asked to sponsor the proposed ordinance with first reading taking place in the
ordinance portion of the meeting.

Community Development Director Tammie Carey asked the Commission to approve the
purchase of ten (10) Apple iPads and OtterBox Defender Cases for the Public Works
Department. Mrs. Carey provided the Commission with a lease option from Zones/Lenovo
and two purchase options, one from Amazon and one from Bluegrass Cellular.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
authorize the purchase of ten (10) iPads and OtterBox Defender Cases from Bluegrass Cellular
for the Public Works Department for a total purchase price of $5,089.90 and further authorized
the Mayor to sign any and all document necessary for this purchase.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Clerk Cathy Dillard asked the Commission to declare the following list of property as
surplus and to authorize the sale of the property.

% DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION /1 D NUMBER
1 Wastewater 2001 Chevy Tahoe LT Vin# 1GNEK13Z52J162226 (Asset Forfeiture)
2 FPD 2005 Ford Crown Vic Vin# 2FAHT71W15X 147291
3 FPD 2011 Ford Crown Vic Vin# 2FABP7BV3BX135151
4 Street Dept 2000 Ford F750 Dump Vin# 3FDPX75Y8YMA22415
5 Street Dept 1995 Ford Ranger XLT Vin# 1FTCR10A0SUC22213
6 Street Dept 2002 Dodge Ram 1500 Vin# 1D7THA16N12J251735 (Asset Forfeiture)
7 Street Dept Military Kohler Diesel Air Compressor
8 Street Dept Military Tow Motor
9 Street Dept 3 Meyer Snow Plows
10 Street Dept Box Style Asphalt Paver
11 Water Dist. Ford Meter Box (Meter test bench/ Akron Style)
12 Water Dist. Elster Mag Meters and Acc. (Sold as a lot)

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Williams to
declare the above-referenced list of property as surplus, to authorize the sale of the property,
and to further authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents necessary for the transfer of

the property.
Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

3

P.7



City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to approve changes to the City of Franklin
Personnel and Procedures Manual and to adopt the proposed Email, Social Media and
Electronic Communications Policy.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Bennett to
approve changes to the City of Franklin Personnel and Procedures Manual and to adopt the
proposed Email, Social Media and Electronic Communications Policy as presented.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.
UTILITIES

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to consider approval of a rate increase of
$0.25 per month for residential recycling services provided by Scott Waste Services. Mr.
Powell noted that this was the first increase in the residential recycling rate since this service
began in 2011. Scott Waste Services representatives were available at the meeting to answer
any questions.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve a $0.25 rate increase effective April 1, 2019, for residential recycling services
provided by Scott Waste Services and authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents
necessary.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided first summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-009 entitled:

Ordinance Repealing Chapter 53, Chapter 110, Chapter 117 and Section 95.37 of Chapter 95
and Amending Chapter 114 in the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances

No action was taken at first reading of the ordinance.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 12:41 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of:

(1) LAND ACQUISITION - Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real
property by a public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a
specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS
61.810(1)(b);

(2) LITIGATION - Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}

P. 8



(3) PERSONNEL - Discussions or hearings which might lead to the appointment, discipline, or
dismissal of an individual employee or member {KRS 61.810(1)(f)}

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; City Manager Kenton Powell; and City Attorney Scott Crabtree.

At 1:00 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Bennett to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

OTHER COMMISSION BUSINESS

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to hire
Carter Munday as the Administrator of the Franklin-Simpson Planning & Zoning Commission
effective April 8, 2019, subject to Simpson Fiscal Court’s joint approval.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Commissioner Bennett said that she had recently attended a training session about litter
abatement and it was very interesting and informative.

ADJOURNMENT

At 1:01 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P.9



MINUTES OF SPECIAL SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN CITY COMMISSION

Tuesday, April 2,2019 at 12:00 Noon
City Hall
117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin City Commission held a Special Called Session at 12:00 Noon, Tuesday, April 2, 2019,
in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin, Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Finance Director Shaunna Cornwell; and,
City Attorney Scott Crabtree.

Mayor Larry Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon and Commissioner Powell offered an
opening prayer.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 12:02 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Williams
to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of: Land Acquisition — Deliberations on the future
acquisition or sale of real property by a public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the
value of a specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS
61.810(1)(b) to discuss the bidding strategy regarding the purchase of the property located on West
Madison Street. Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

At 12:34 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
exit Executive Session. Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT

At 12:35 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
adjourn the special called session of the Franklin City Commission. Voting Aye: All. Motion carried
unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P.10



RECOGNITIONS

P. 11



MEMO

T Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: April 39,2019

SUBJECT: Recognition (31W Street Lighting Project)

The City of Franklin in partnership with WRECC installed 20 street lights from Hunt Ford to
Wal-Mart on 31W south. It was a huge learning lesson for our Public Works Department,
which has never installed the concrete bases and run conduit underground to enable WRECC to
mount the street light poles

It’s a great example of multiple agencies working together, to save money, to complete a project
for the betterment of our City.

Special thanks in Zac Wren, WRECC Supervisor, for his support and leadership throughout the
project.

I’ve ask Zac Wren and Public Works employees who were instrumental in this project to come
to Monday’s meeting.

Thanks,

Kenton

Attachments are on the following pages

P.12



WORK ORDER: 66095

DATE RELEASED:

VICINITY MAP

CITY OF FRANKLIN
US HIGHWAY 31W
STREET LIGHTS

JANDARY, 2017

ROLING SPAN:

Warren; 1

'ELECTRE COOPESUATIVE CORFCRUTION

LATITUDE: 3 42 0.1620° N, LOWGITUDE: 66 34 18.2245° W ""Be Alert - Don’t Get Hurt!"



HAUE: D00S=gwg DATE: DG 20, 2010 TWE 1134 MM

T
o
’/’

= \\‘ In
O%
E i

YT r1osr70es

H @ )E
E E
. " ® 1 215 /000 ® A 215" 1/0Ams
e oy ———i— LD g 04—®u£ = — 2N u—-i-— e : Y —

LEGEND

xR
VTR PO o1 P

DTG STREET LGHT VALY
PACPOSED STREET LGHT VALLT
ERSTHG 14 TRANSICRUER
PACPASED 1 TAANSFORUER
EnsTNG U VAT

PACFOSED U VALY

EXSTING JINCTION B
PRIPOSED JUNCTION BOX
SICONDART PEDESTAL
PROPOSED 18 PADMOMT TE.
PRZPOSED 34 FAGUSUNT Tt
EQSTIHG s PAGMOUNT Tx,
EXSTNG 30 PADHOUNT TE,

PACPOSED CAPAGTOR
EXSING CAPACITOR

EEE EEEEEE

PAOMOSID SwTCH PoXT
ENSING SMITCH FONT

DUSTHG POLE
PROPOSED POLE

PROPOSED RECLOZIR
EUSTMG RICLOSER

DusTRG LHT
i p—
o ¥ b i
PROPOSED O
[Ffmd s ok sty
[ lprregeton;
EnsTie SaL gt
PROPSLD SINGAE CUT
PROPISED 3o PRUARY
PROPEED 29 PRUARY
PROPOSED 14 FRUAYY
EXISTHG 30 PRIUAY
CRSTNG 20 PRIUANY
DHSTING 10 PRUARY
PROTCSED ON SECOUDAST
EOSTNG O SCOMIANY
PROPCIED UG SLEOADARY
DISTHG WNOLRCHOLAD
ROATWATS
PROPERY LNE
FINEE L

]U T Tﬁ@c:n

3) 0TS (18-5T) 10 BC MEIALD AT SARCE
wrm

US—atW SQUTH MAIN STREET

H‘M’u‘flmu-—@ri—— A E\s 1/ @ E

M-ELI-UG , UT=S- 14k
Mi-5008-U5, OF-5~14H3
K-S, (3) Dit-4

ous

MI-5C0B-HG , OF-5-1458
M-5C0B-G , OF-5-14K3
Mi-5C08-UG , 0F=5-14i3
WI-SC03-MS , DF-5-14k8

E@EEEEOBEE

EEEBEEEEE

MI-SC08-M5 , OF-5-144

ECYLY D RO

LT RS e &
TR Sl BE 3 01 kG0 STEIL COMRT,

—

B

LIGHT FIXTURES TO BE
INSTALLED AT 30* TILT

WORK ORDER 86095

CITY OF FRANKLIN
AUGUST, 2116

05 HWY 31W STREET LIGHTS

1707}

7o

P. 14



HANTI DSUF1=3deg DATE: DEC 21, 2018 TME: 1:38 P

1 EXSrioovsany

g
e

|
s e

]
£
o
2
|
B

VI-ECOE-¥G, UF-5-14:8
Mi-6C0B-NG, UF-5-14HR
Aoy MI-6COB-HG, UF-5-144B

eeee
BB

KD M-BCD3-MG, UF-S-14

—e=_

u

i
]
E
s

WORK ORDER 66095

CITY OF FRANKLIN
DS HWY 31W STREET LIGHTS
AUGUST, 2016

FEPEEEEED: b > 0om 1

T

EE

cusTouty
ETOR PILE OB PO
ExSTRG STRETT UGHT VAT
PROPOSCD ST UGHT VAT
DOITHE 1o TAKTFORVIR
PROPOSED. 18 TRANSIDRUTR
DOITHG U3 YART
rRorosEn UG VAT
DSTHE ANETION BOX

P. 15



WA B4093-2dwg DATE: DEC 20, Z08 TMD 138 P

A

-

|

jo | LTHS ns_j

[clelelslo)

110077662

]

®
MI-ECO3-UG, UF-S5-1448
MH-ECO3-UG, UF-5-1ak8  (TT)
k-6, (3) Wi
s

MI-BCOB-ME, UF-5-14HB

EEEEE
EEBEEEE

110058786

rioor8se 4 (1) A 1/
= & — o s

PAGPOSID UG VAT
DISTNG ANCTON Box
PROPGSID INCTION 13X
SLCOMDART PEDESTAL
PROPCSD 14 PADUOUNT TX.
PROPOSI) 3n PAGMIUNT T2
ENSTNG 18 PALUOUNT T
ENSTHE 3¢ PADMGUNT TX

wn

L£gEN 3

cusTouDt @ DOSTING PO o

MLTER POLL OF FED ©  rorosen Pour @
Cusmg ST Usdt vt

FAEPOSD STRTT LT vaeT [F]  rmoncszn secisn &

P — [f] oee recosmn a

e s &

. by

[ Rp——. e o

e ——— n— uo w

9

g

BE: EEEEEEEE oo vo@]

PROPOSD CAPATTOR
EXISTING CAPASITSR

PIOFOSID SMIICH FONT
EXTING SWTTH PONT

2) S XY HTH KCTAL 1€ DT, FE
NI ST USTALAROG,

3) FUSS (US-57) T EF MSTALLED AT SoukeE.
¥ AR

4) CODIT NSTALLD R A 1OMRAT 02
UMEE L BE 1
D S, it

DISTIHNG 36 PRMARY
ONSTIG 2 PRUARY
ENSTIHE 18 FRUARY

PROPOSED OH EECOMDARY '_U-'I'
e g
[
= 3
25
=
EEs
L .
| P
s
?__n
SE
R =
w
=]

!
~

" US-31W SOUTH MAIN STREET
ke

\

. g
» EC @
. . « 1o " " s
warrae @ ST i OF BAJO _mope O muiiee ©F mewve @F  wwim @fwsertl
L\

; 125'1/0ATOG. \‘
\ Al 1251/ e

N,
~

Mi-20-408, LF-5-14H8
Wl=40-MGE, UF-5-14H3
Ui-4G-ME8, UF-5-14H
Ml=40-MGB, UF-5=14H8
=5, {3) Ui=i

Mi-40-4a58, UF-5-14H8

'
\
\

A

SO 1aiig 0"

P. 16




TIME: 12:23 PM

NAME: Mi—-6COB-MG.dwg DATE: DEC 08, 2016

/2" VERTICAL TENON

38'-0"%

18"

GROUND ROD /

(SEE UMB~6)

NOTES:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)

PHOTO CONTROL WINDOW ADJUSTED TO FACE
NORTH, EXCEPT IN CASES OF EXISTING LIGHT
SOURCE OR SUBSTANTIAL REFLECTIVE LIGHT

CLOSELY ORIGINATING FROM THAT DIRECTION.

PLUMB POLE.

IF NOT DEFINED ON CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS, LIGHT FIXTURE SHALL BE
ADJUSTED ALLOWING THE LIGHT PATTERN
TO BEST ILLUMINATE THE ROADWAY.

FUSE TO BE INSTALLED AT CIRCUIT
FEED TC LIGHT.

METAL STREET LIGHT POLES AND
ASSOCIATED METAL ATTACHMENTS MUST
BE BONDED TO A GROUND ROD.

CODE

mem by MATERIAL

188

0| av 1 | Connector UG

267

Interstate LED Light Fixture, 6 COB
(Holophone: MGLED 6 5K AS W L V 6 PCL1 P5)

5| bp 1

823

5| zz Pole, Aluminum — 35'-0"

830!

0| bg Breok Away Baose

Conneclors — os required

MCO77|

pc Phote Control

1
1
MC049) P 4
1
1

MGC106,

uxf Fuse, cortridge

MC129

av (2) #12-2 CU. UG. AZ Cable

[Founpanion

\
{

951 FAIRVIEW AVEHUE

|
B
!

)]

\
|
|
|

i i

« BOWLING GREEM, KY 42102 + 270:842-6541

Designed by
ENGINEERING

JLL

Checked ky

SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS
6 COB LEO — MONGOOSE SERIES

Approved by
L.

Drawn by
wMa

Autocad File: S:\TS\GIS\Dept\CAD\Specifications\,
Lighting\MI-6COB~NG.dwg

REV

DATE

REVISION

Date
12/08/2016

Scale
NTS

Drawing Narne: MI—GCOB-MG

P. 17




cooe| mem | REGD|  MATERIAL

CONDUITS

2150 al 1 Rod, Ground, 5/8" diometer

6000 cj | As reqd | Ground wire, No. 4 bare copper

2" CONDUIT MCO44 aj 1 Clamp, Ground Rod Wire
MC167 | ¢ 4 Bolt, Anchor 1" x 36" B NC Galvanized
SECOND Steel, ASTM A576, 50,000 PSI min,
2" CONDUIT yield, 8” of threaded end golvanized

(UNIT UF—5—14HB) per ASTM A153, with 2 galvonized steel

hex nuts and 2 washers per bolt

6 i F; MC1E8 28" #2 Concrete Rebar
S I I #4 Concrete Rebar

UF—5—14HA

______ MC168 20'
MC169 0.407 | Concrete (Cubic Yards)
MC170 1 |Concrete Form, SonoTube (247}
MC171 1 | 2" Schedule 40 PVC Elbow (OF-5-14HA)
BOFT" C%'%LE MCI7t 2 |7 Schedule 40 PVC Elbow (OF-5-14HE)
MCIT1 1 3/4" Schedule 40 PVC Elbow

3/4" CONDUIT

PLAN VIEW
- SEE NOTE 3 ——

SECOND 2" CONDUIT £

(UNIT UF—5—14HB) I\ r
1" CHAMFER \ |
i |

|
(& 5 [ ® | I S0 i
GROUND LEVEL \@ s = ||| = T 4" MAX.
VA el L N N TN RS
LG T T ! 5 ESNONS
oot | R
{MIN.) ST, < F o I : B FOUR (4) NO. 4 REINFORCING
// y 8 // BAR, 2" FROM EDGE, EQUALLY
R {;é g \ ./< /// E>/\\C SPACED (VERTICAL)
TR 1 il . /2 0"
% A N\
o~ F T ey
3 >>\ | < & 2" SCHEDULE 40 PVC, TO
N al A BOX, TRANSFORMER, OR NEXT
i~ | \ .
; : // LIGHT
"/ﬁ N ﬁ N
NS { ! 9
5'—0"
I
— I
20" — ¢ : CONCRETE, 3,000 PSl
(UNDISTURBED EARTH) _/1( i
| i
" ' /5 [~ NO. 2 REINFORCING BAR TIES,
. By, 12" APART (HORIZONTAL)
NOTES: o ‘ ‘ |
1. ALL MATERIALS AND LABOR e i . W
TO BE FURNISHED BY - - - —— " . -
DEVELOPER OR CONTRACTOR. . 5B U
2. W.R.E.C.C. DITCH INSPECTOR TO APPROVE ELEVAT'ON V] Ew

BEFORE CONCRETE POUR AND AT COMPLETION.

3. EXTEND BARE Cu. GROUND WIRE 18" (MIN) FROM
TOP OF FOUNDATION.

4. FOUNDATION TOP TO BE LEVEL AND FINISH TC BE
SMOOTH AND FREE OF VOIDS. SONOTUBE TO EXTEND ot

A MINIMUM OF 12" BELOW GROUND GRADE. BURAL E ECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
951 FAIRVIEW AVENUE » BOWLING GREEN, KY 42102 » 270: 8426541

5. ALIGN ANCHOR BOLTS TO BE PARRALLEL TO STREET.

NAME: UF—5-14H.dwg DATE: JAN 12, 2009 TIME: 7:51 AM

Designed by Checked by STREET LIGHT STANDARD FOUNDATICON
SLG SLG FOR 30 FT. AND ABOVE POLES — HWY PROJECTS
01/12/03| DEFINED DISTANCE CONDOIT TO EXTENT ABOVE CONC. BASE (WMB) Appraver by Riwin oy AU(;E'O\%DA?A&ES\SPECHC ATIONS\WRECC\DF-5-144
10/01/08| CHANGED CFFSET DISTANCE GROUND ROD (RLY) WMB i
1 |08/29/08| REVISED ANCHOR BOLT REFERENCE (WMB) Date Scale Drawing Name:
REv | DATE | REVISION 08,/19,/2008 NOT TO SCALE UF-5-14H

P. 18




NAME: SecondaryDitchDetail_1C.dwg DATE: DEC 28, 2016 TIME: 7:45 AM

N FisHED GRADE

SELFCTED EARTH BACKFILL
(NO LARGE ROCKS, AND/OR OTHER
SHARP, HEAVY DBJECTS ALLOWED)

N
%

N
NG
0

S
7
&
N

\‘}
XK
N

A

K
22

N

42"
4 MINIMUM
WARNING TAPE —— ] OF COVER
12"
WREC.C. WLL DETERMINE THE ;\\/’\ :
NUMBER AND SIZE OF CONDUITS K
SPARE CONDUIT MAY BE REQUIRED a7
BY WRE.C.C. ENGINEER NS

¥ FLOOR MOST BE FLAT. MAY REQUIRE

VARIES GRAVEL TO ACHIEVE IF SO DETERMINED
BY WR.E.C.C. ENGINEER.
SECONDARY DITCH DETAIL 1C
N.T.S,
NOTES:
1) CONDOIT SHALL BE PVC, SCHEDULE 40 ELECTRICAL 5)  ALL FORFIGN DTIUTY PERPENDICULAR CROSSINGS MUST HAVE
GRADE PYC, SIZE AND NOMBER AS SPECIFIED ON PLANS. 12" MINIMUM SEPARATION FROM W.RE.C.C. DUCT.
SWEEPS SHALL BE SCHEDOLE 40 FOR LESS THAN 150°
AND SCHEDULE 80 OVER 150" (18" RADIUS MINIMDM). 6)  CONDUITS RUNNING HORIZONTAL TO WATER OR GAS LINES
MUST HAVE A MINIMUM 12" HORIZONTAL SEPARATION,
2)  CONDOIT SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 42" COVER
TO FINAL GRADE. 7)  FURNISH AND INSTALL POLL STRING IN EACH CONDUIT.
3)  WARNING TAPE SHALL BE INSTALLED THE LENGTH 8)  CONDUIT INSTALLED UNDER A ROADWAY OR PROPERTY
OF THE TRENCH AT LEAST 12" ABOVE CONDUIT. ENTRANCE SHALL BE 2 INCH RIGID STEEL CONDUIT.
4)  TELEPHONE OR CABLE UTILITY MINIMUM SEPARATION FROM
W.RE.C.C. DOCTS SHALL BE 12" PARALLEL AND 12" VERTICAL.
DITCH AND CONDUIT INSPECTION IS REQUIRED BY W.R.E.C.C. BEFORE BACKFILLING CAN BEGIN.
FAILURE TO DO SO WILL REQUIRE THE BACKFILLING TO BE REMOVED.

' 4 &
RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE CORPORATION
951 FAIRVIEW AVENUE « BOWLING GREEN, KY 42102 « 270: 842-6541

P.19




HEAR
THE
PUBLIC

P.

20



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners

FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: April 472019

SUBJECT: Hear the Public (East Highway 100 Flag Responsibility)

L. J. Pearson asked to address the City Commission concerning if the City would take over the
responsibility of maintaining the American Flags that are placed on East Highway 100, adjacent
to the Minit Mart.

Background information:

The Flags have been in place for approximately 6 years. Before they were installed an unknown
individual asked the then Mayor Clark if it was okay. Mayor Clark said it was acceptable as
long as they were responsible for maintenance of the flags and the City was not going to be
burdened or liable with ongoing maintenance and replacement issues.

On April 2™ former Mayor Clark confirmed all of the above background information.

P. 21



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: April 312019

SUBJECT: Hear the Public (Update Kim Cundall)

Last October Kim Cundall addressed the City Commission requesting financial support for
Ohio Valley Wooden Bat Collegiate Baseball League that she’s putting together. Since October,
there’s been a continued effort and activity regarding baseball league in Franklin so Kim has

asked to share the latest news with the City Commission.

Thank You,

Kenton Powell

Attachments from the October 22'?"'8 City Commission Meeting are on the following pages

P22



MEMO

TEk Mayor Ronnie Clark and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: 10-18-2018

SUBJECT: Hear the Public

Kim Cundall, previously Kim Alexander, asked to speak to the Commission on Monday,
concerning Ohio Valley Wooden Bat Collegiate Baseball League. Kim provided some basic
materials on the following pages for your review.

Thank You,

Kenton Powell

P. 23



—"!"—-‘_——"_

Toe Kereoce Oway

402 Westview Drive

Franklin, KY. 42134
To whom it may concarn:

| write you, as a sports enthusiast, o let you know of an opportunity that may
inferest you and your company. We are excited to infroduce the Franklin Duelers
Summer Collegiate Team which will be playing in its inaugurai season at Franklin Simpson
High Scheol Baseball fisld May 31s 2019 - August 15 2019. Franklin Duelers are a part of
the Chlo Vailey League a summer collegiate wooden bat league consisting of ¢ teams
throughout Kentucky and Indiana. Franklin Duelers will have a 42 game schedule
consisiing of 21 home games and 21 away games, there is potenfiol of more than 42 if
we make the playoffs.

Franklin Duelers is a non profit LLC, which thrives solely on volunteers and
spehsofships. This tedm will conglst of local players as well ds players from deross ihe
United Siates. Our goalis to help bring local sports entertainment and tourism to our
community. We would like all businesses to have an opporiunity to be a part of this new
adventure for Franklin, KY

[ have affached a fact sheet and a description of the various sponsorship
opportunities and benefits. In addition to the specific benefits associated with individual
sponsorship levels, sponsors will enjoy increased name recagnition and goodwill in the
community. The foidl sponsorship package offers axposure ihat cdan be more diredily
largeted, more effective, and less costly than fraditional advertising.

After you have had a chance to review the information enclosed, | would be
hapoy to gnswer any guastions, .

We look forward to your support in making the Franklin Duelers o success in our
community. '

Sincerely,

. Kimberly Cundaill

General Manager
270-847-1792

- —15-
P. 24



%E“PC Fecen o O Ly

Gy

FACT SHEET:

OHIO VALLEY WOODEN BAT COLLEGIATE BASEBALL LEAGUE

° Formed in 2005 as KIT League (OVL organized in 2011 11)
® KT League - four teams originally - Fulton, KY, Union City. TN, Sikesion, MO and
Farmington, MO
°  OQhio Valley Leagues - four teams originally - Fulton, Dawson Springs, Marion and
Owensboro KY
°  §ieams curently - Franklin new in 2019 - Fulton {2011), Owensboro (2011), Hopkinsville
(2012}, Madisonville (2012}, Huntingburg, IN (2013). Muhlenberg Co (2016), Paducah
(2016), Henderson (2017)
o East and West DNISIOHS 4 teamsin the Wesf 5 teams in the East
o oners must be on a college roster with elig bility remaining
° Players are from all Collegiate classn‘lco‘nons and from all over the United States
° 30 man roster - 24 active players
*  PFlay by NCAA rules and Ohio Valley League by-laws
°  Season begins the weekend affer Memorial Day and ends by August Tst { includes
" the playoffs)
*  Allteams participate in playoffs - 3 rounds best two out of three series
° Al Star game in ecrly July
$600.00 player fee
9 member boarct of F arectorns - one member el franchise
Officers - President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer
Franchise-fee - $10,000 { lump sum or 2 §5, 000.00 payments over two yedars)
-39 year begins annual $1,200.00 league fee . ... . e W
NCAA certified umpires { 2 per game)
Minimurn 40 game schedule
No overnight travel required
Home teain feeds visiting feam affer game ( box Lunch) fo expedite travel back
home
Diamond NCAA flat seam balls @ $51 1.00/ D7
Home and Away uniforms
Require field with lights { alt games played at mgh )
Prefer c:vc:llobrln‘y of chair seats and bleachers =
Tarpaulin for field in case of rain
Admission costs minimum of $5.00 for generdl admission and $ 8.00 for reserved
seating
¢ WEBSITE : ohiovalleyleague.com

o £-] o a [+]

o o a ©

a =] o o o

a

=il
P. 25



7;5:2,/2?6 TR eemvCe. Oﬂl«j -

“0f

e s
AT t
ERTENEN]

402 Wesivisw Drivs

Franklin, Ky, 421
Dear Duelers’ Game Day Supporter:

We write to request that you become an official Franklin Duelers Game Day Sponsor for
the 2019 season by choosing one of the game day sponsorships below, 2019 will be our
inaugural season, Franklin Duslers are o member of the Ohic Valley League g Summer
Collegiate Wooden Bat League that was introduced in 2012, that has attracted more
than 10,000 fans as well as attention from across the country via internet and radio
broadcasts for its member teams.

This has resulted in an overall local economic impact for its member feams of $1.5 million
each year or $9.0 million since 201211

All Game Day Spensor packages include the following:

° Option to throw out the first pitch

° Option to sing the National Anthem

° Option to lead the 7 inning stretch

° Option to have a display premoting your business

*  Mony businesses bring ifems fo glve away during the game By drawlngs or ws
prizes for the en fiefd conlest befweean innings

°  Opfion to pick o chariity to simultaneously promete during your geme day

We offer three Game Day Sponsership Levels:
Frcﬂje admission for ol (Sunday- Thursday $1,200.00, Friday and Sulurday $1,500.00)
Weekday Sponsor (Bunday- Thursday) $400 includes 100 fickets (additlens! lickels are $3.59 egeh)

Weekend Spenser { Friday and Sshuwday) 3459 inaludes 100 lickets {oddilional fickels are $4.50 each)

Your business will also be promoted from the public address syystem as well as
annsuncemenis about upcoming daily sponsors. We also post egch day's sponsor on
soclel medla with links fo your business website, if desiied. Typically, your sponsoiship is
menfioned diring radlo broadeasis as well,

Thanl you for considering this sponsorship request and please let us know if you have any questions
at all. To confirm your spensership investment, piedse contact us,

Sinceraly,

Kimberly Cundall
General Manager
270-647-1792 i

_17_
P. 26

S



P i

At

Foe A2reeen ce Dardg

02 Wesl g

Franklin, KY. 42134
Dear Duelers' Supporter:

We write to request that you pecome an official Franklin Buelers Seasen $ponsor for the 2019 season by
choosing one of the sporisorship lévels Bélow. 2019 will be our inaugUral séasod, Frankiin Duslérs dre g
member of the Ohio Valley League a Summer Collegiate Wooden Bat League that was infreduced in 2012,
that has atiracted more than 10,000 fans as well as Gﬂenﬁoﬁ from ccross the country via internet and radio
broddeasts for iis member 1ears,

This has resulted in an averall local economic impact for ifs member learns of $1.5'million each year or $9.0
rmillion since 201211

Tearn Sponsor = $5,000.00 to recejve:

*  Feaiured banner signage and advertising at all home games and.on fe feam vans
°  Recognition via public announcements mulfiple times ot all home games )
°  Reeegnition in all game prometiens and adverlising
°  12season passes for all home games (over $1,380.00 value)
*  Rights fo a ceremonial 19 pitch during the season
Strke Cut Swonsor =$2,500.00 to receive: ‘
°  Prominent banner signage and advertising at all home games and on the feam VEIF
© . Recognition in ail games promotions and adverdising '
°  8season passes for all home games {over $920,00 value)
°  Recognition anytime a strike outis registered by a Dueler pitcher
** Rights to @ ceremonial 14 pitch during fhe season
{ Bxfra Bases Spansor = $1,000.00 fo receive:
°  Signage at all home games
¢ Recogrition in hofhe gems prograrms "
° 4 season passes for all home games (over $440.00 value)
°  Recognition anyfime an exira base hit, excluding a home run, is recorded by the Duelers
Howte kun Spensor = $500.00 o receive:
®  Recognition in home game programs

7 2sedbon passes for all home Games (523000 value)

°  Recognifion ﬁnyiim;—:‘ a hare run Is recorded by a Duelers hitter

Thank you for considering this sponsorship request, and plec:ée let us know if you have any questions at all,

To confirm your spensorship investment, please contact us.

Sincerely,

Kimberly Cundall
Ceneral Manager
270-647-1792

_.'1 8__
P. 27




Annual Economic Impact Estimates
Season
Per Player Low
Meals $500
Gas 50
Misc. 50
Total $600
Per Family Low
Hotels 50
Food 40
Gas 0
Misc, 0
Total 90
Team
Gas ' 1200
Apparel 1000
Food 1250

Y

7oz

High Low
$1,000
150
200
$1,350

High Low
250
200
50
100
600

1500
1500
1750

TOTAL

= 7€ cpnce OAS

25 Players
High
12,500 -
1,250
1,250
15,000

" 25 Families
High
1,250
1,000
0
0
2,250

Season Totals
1,200
1,000
1,250

20,700

fe-
P.

<

25,000
3,750
5,000

33,750

6,250
5,000
1,250
2,500
15,000

1,500
1,500
1,750

53,500

28

»Cﬂfi



PUBLIC
SAFETY

P.

29



2_taginini S

e vt

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
FROM: Chief of Police
DATE: April 4, 2019

SUBJECT: Informative Presentation

The Franklin Police Department has been working a rash of vehicle break ins within
several neighborhoods. Officer Mike Jones would like to give a brief informative
presentation to the City Commission involving our recent cases as well as Neighborhood
Watch.

I' will give a brief introduction of Mike Jones and then he will give a short presentation
following.

P. 30



GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

P. 31



agp Al
\”-\'n.\» COUNTY. EEnT uC

MEMORANDUM
To: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
From: Kenton Powell, City Manager
Subject: Street Closure Request

Date: April 4,2019

The SOKY Earth Day Festival and the Cherry Blossom Art and Music Festival are scheduled for
Saturday, April 20, 2019. Robin Hollingsworth from Community Education has asked the
Commission to consider closing College Street between West Cedar Street and West Kentucky
Avenue (in front of the Methodist Church) for vendors and activities. The request is to close the
street from 6:00 AM until 3:00 PM to allow for vendor and activity set up.

The area requested will also provide a staging area for the riders of the Square-to-Square Bike
Ride hosted by the Simpson County Literacy Center.

The Methodist Church has signed the attached authorization form for the street closing request.

Proposed Action: Motion to approve the closure of a College Street from West Cedar
Street to West Kentucky Avenue for the SOKY Earth Day Festival, the Cherry Blossom
Art and Music Festival and the Square-to-Square Bike Ride on Saturday, April 20, 2019
from 6:00 AM until 3:00 PM.

P. 32



City of Franklin

ﬁ [\ Downtown Street C{d_:sihg Request \/ /

(A) Methodlst Churc
Signature: Jn

J

T T

(B) Frankiin Presbyterian Church
Signature:

\u o]

(C) Empty 7/20/11
ngnalure

Y-

D) Hanor Company
Slgnature

(E) Crocker Law Offices
Signature:

COURTHOUSE

(F) Michael's
Signature:

SIMPSON COUNTY

(1) Goldsmith Shoppe
Signature:

(K) Salon G
Signature:

(L) Froggy's Quilts
Signature:

(M) Robert E. Taylor Attorney
Signature:

(N) Ogles Barber Shop
Signature:

(O) iGraphics and Design
Signature:

(P) Bray Eye Care
Signature:

(Q) Simpson County Court House
Signature:

I e L —

i Name(s) of person or Or amzatlon Requestmg Closmg

SOkY Epull Das, Fea v

(G) Short Strokes Tatoo Shop
Signature:

(H) Mustard Seed Market
Signature:

Please Highlight area that you are requestmg to close.
Dale(s) for closmg A’D pil e 2014

Time Closed:_g 16 ¢ M
Get signatures from all bussiness owners to asslre that
they have been notified.

“Open.__ 3122 piy

(1) Old Favorite

Signature:

P. 33




MEMO

T0: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: April 3" 2019

SUBJECT: Space Capsule

Jeremy Loveall, Franklin Simpson welding teacher, has reached out to the City of Franklin to
approve the relocation site of the Space Capsule currently located on the corner of 1008 and
31W. Jeremy requested permission to move the Capsule to the City’s Park area off East Cedar
Street. If approved he’s offered to pour a concrete pad at its final location site.

On the following pages is proposed Space Capsule location in relationship to the park.

Thank You,

Kenton Powell

P. 34



i, P AT TE

yie 3




Kenton Powell

From: Tammie Carey

Sent: Monday, April 1, 2019 12:37 PM
To: Kenton Powell; Mayor

Subject: Moving SpaceShip

leremy Loveall just stopped by City Hall. The property at the corner of 1008 and 31-W has sold so they need to move
the spaceship. He would like to ask if a concrete pad could be poured and move it to the pavilion/park area by the
creek off East Cedar Street.

Jeremy asked if one of you could call him to discuss, please. His cell phone number is (270) 776-6008.

u:.muw x"

W‘@"g/

Community Development Director

City of Franklin

117 West Cedar Street
P.O. Box 2805

Franklin, KY 42135
Direct: (270) 482-5528
City Hall: (270) 586-4497
Fax: (270) 586-9419

P. 36



; ;__‘;." s o

FRANKLIN

MEMO

TO: Franklin City. Commission and Simpson Fiscal Court
FROM: Scott Crabtree

DATE: April 4, 2019

SUBJECT: Ethics Ordinance

Attached is the proposed revised Ethics Ordinance. The changes are stricken and underlined. As you
can see, this ordinance has not been changed since its original adoption in 1994. These changes are
needed based upon changes in the law and the ethics training that the City received in February. We
will discuss at the meeting.

Proposed Action: We will need 2 sponsors in order to have first reading during the ordinance portion
of the meeting.

P. 37



ORDINANCE NO. 2019 -012

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A PRIOR ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A CODE OF
ETHICAL CONDUCT APPLICABLE TO THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE
CITY AND CITY AGENCIES

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky has enacted
legislation requiring this city to enact and enforce a code of ethics governing the conduct of city
officers and employees; and

WHEREAS, the officials of this city are committed to the operation of a city government
that manifests the highest moral and ethical standards among its officers and employees and
desire to comply with all requirements of the Commonwealth’s local government ethics law; and

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted, in 1994, an ordinance creating a code of ethical
conduct and the Board of City Commissioners deems it appropriate to amend and update this
code of ethical conduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky:

SECTION 1. Title. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “City of Franklin
Code of Ethics.”

SECTION 2. Findings. The legislative body of the City of Franklin finds and declares that:
(A)  Public office and employment with the city are public trusts.

(B)  The vitality and stability of the government of this city depend upon the
public’s confidence in the integrity of its elected and appointed officers and employees.
Whenever the public perceives a conflict between the private interests and the public duties of a
city officer or employee, that confidence is imperiled.

(C) The government of this city has a duty to provide its citizens with
standards by which they determine whether public duties are being faithfully performed, and to
make its officers and employees aware of the standards which the citizens rightfully expect them
to comply with while conducting their duties.

SECTION 3. Purpose and Authority.

(A) It is the purpose of this ordinance to provide a method of assuring that
standards of ethical conduct and financial disclosure requirements for officers and employees of
the city shall be clearly established, uniform in their application, and enforceable, and to provide
the officers and employees of the city with advice and information concerning potential conflicts
of interest which might arise in the conduct of their public duties.

P. 38



(B) It is further the purpose of this ordinance to meet the requirements of KRS
65.003 as enacted by the 1994 Kentucky General Assembly.

(C)  This ordinance is enacted under the power vested in the city by KRS
82.082 and pursuant to requirements of KRS 65.003.

SECTION 4. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, unless the context clearly requires a
different meaning:

(A)  “Business” means any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, firm,
enterprise, franchise, association, organization, self-employed individual, holding
company, joint stock company, receivership, trust, professional service
corporation, limited liability company, or any legal entity through which business
is conducted for profit.

(B)  “Board” means the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics which is
vested by this ordinance with the responsibility of enforcing the requirements of
the city’s code of ethics.

(C)  “Candidate” means any individual who seeks nomination or election to a

city office. An individual is a candidate when the individual files a notification

and declaration for nomination for office with the county clerk or secretary of

state, or is nominated for office by a political party, or files a declaration of intent
~ to be a write-in candidate with the county clerk or secretary of state.

(D)  “City” refers to the City of Franklin, Kentucky.

(E) “City Agency” means any board, commission, authority, nonstock
corporation, or other entity created, either individually or jointly, by this city.

(F) “City Business” any discussion of specific city issues that go beyond
general information.

(G) _ "Confidential information" means information obtained in the course of
holding public office or employment, or as a contractor to the city, which is not
available to members of the public and which the officer or employee is not
authorized to disclose, except to designated individuals or bodies, including
written and non-written information. When such information is also available
through channels open to the public, officers and employees are not prohibited
from disclosing the availability of those channels.

(H) "Consultant" means an independent contractor or professional person. or
entitv engaged by the city or advising a city officer, and in a position to influence
a city decision or action or have access to confidential information.

(D "Customer or client" means:

P. 39



1. Any person or entity to which a person or entity has supplied goods or
services during the previous 24 months, having a total value greater than
one thousand dollars ($1.000); or

2. Any person or entity to which an officer or employee's outside employer
or business has supplied goods or services during the previous 24 months,
having a total value greater than one thousand dollars ($1.000), but only if
the officer or employee knows or has reason to know the outside employer
or business supplied the goods or services.

€)) "Domestic partner" is an adult, unrelated by blood, with which an
unmarried or separated officer or employee has an exclusive committed
relationship, maintains a mutual residence, and shares basic living expenses.

(K)  “Employee” means any person, whether full-time, part-time, seasonal, or
temporary, and whether paid or unpaid. who is employed or provides service to
the city. The term “employee” shall not include any contractor or subcontractor
or any of their employees.

(L) “Family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, parent, stepparent,
child, stepchild, brother, stepbrother, sister, stepsister, mother-in-law, father-in-
law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent or grandchild.

(M) “Immediate family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, a child or

step-child who is not emancipated and who resides in the officer’s or employee’s
household, or a person claimed by the officer or employee, or the officer’s or
employee’s spouse or domestic partner, as a dependent for tax purposes.

(N)  "Financial benefit" includes any money, service, license, permit, contract,
authorization, loan, discount, travel, entertainment, hospitality, gratuity, or any
promise of any of these, or anything else of value. This term does not include
campaign contributions authorized by law.

(O) "Financial interest" is a relationship to something such that a direct or
indirect financial benefit has been, will be, or might be received as a result of'it.

(P) “Household" includes anyone whose primary residence is in the officer or
employee's home, including nonrelatives who are not rent payers or staff.

(Q)  “Officer” means any person. whether full-time or part-time, and whether
paid or unpaid, who is one of the following:

1. Mayor;
2. City Commission Member;

P. 40



3. City Clerk:

4. City Manager:

5. Police Chief:

6. Any person who occupies a non-elected office created under KRS
83A.080; or

7. A member of the governing body of any city agency or joint body of any

governmental agency who ha_s been appointed to the governing body of
the agency by the city.

(R) “Qfficial Act” means any legislative, administrative, appointive or
discretionary act of any public official or emplovee of the city or any agency,
board, committee or commission thereof.

(S) “Personal benefit" includes benefits other than those that are directly
financially advantageous. These include financial benefits to immediate family
members, business associates, as well as non-financial benefits to these people
and to oneself, including such things as reputation and the success of one's career.

(D "Personal interest”" means a relationship to something such that a personal
benefit has been, will be, or might be obtained by certain action or inaction with

respect to it.

(U)  “Social media” is understood to be content created by individuals, using
the internet. Examples of social media include Facebook, blogs. Instagram, RSS,
YouTube, Second Life, Twitter, LinkedIn, and Flickr.

(V) "Subordinate" means another official or employee over whose activities an
official or employee has direction, supervision or control.

(W) “Substantial debtor or creditor” means any person or business owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10.000), except from debts arising from the purchase
of a primary residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or
used primarily for person, family or household purposes.

(X) _ “Transaction” means any matter, including but not limited to, contracts,
work or business with the city, the sale or purchase of real estate by the city, and
any request for zoning amendments, variances, or special permits pending before
the city, upon which a public officer or employee performs an official act or
action.

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

SECTION 5. Conflicts of Interest in General. Every officer and employee of the city and every

4

P. 41



city agency shall comply with the following standards of conduct:

(A) No officer or employee, or any immediate family member of any officer
or employee, shall have interest in a business or engage in a business, transaction, or activity,
which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of the officer’s or employee’s public
duties.

(B)  No officer or employee shall intentionally use or attempt to use his or her
official position with the city to secure unwarranted (or unsolicited) privileges or advantages for
himself or herself or others.

(C)  No officer or employee shall intentionally take or refrain from taking any
discretionary action, or agree to take or refrain from taking any discretionary action, or induce or
attempt to induce any other officer or employee to take or refrain from taking any discretionary
action, on any matter before the city in order to obtain a financial benefit for any of the
following:

The officer or employee;

A family member;

An outside employer;

Any business in which the officer or employee, or any immediate
family member has a financial interest, including but not limited
to:

halb el

(a) An outside employer or business of his or hers, or of his or her
family member, or someone who works for such outside
employer or business;

(b) A customer or client; or,

(c) A substantial debtor or creditor of his or hers, or of his or her
family member;

5. Any business with which the officer or employee or any family
member is negotiating or seeking prospective employment or other
business or professional relationship.

6. A person or entity from whom the officer or employee has received an
election campaign contribution of a total of more than two hundred
dollars ($200) during the past election cycle (this amount includes
contributions from a person's immediate family or business as well as
contributions from an entity's owners, directors, or officers, as well as
contributions to the officer or employee's party committee or
noncandidate political committee).

7. A nongovernmental civic group, social, charitable, or religious
organization of which he or she, or his or her immediate family
member, is an officer or director.

P. 42



(D)  No officer or employee shall be deemed in violation of any provision in
this section if, by reason of the officer’s or employee’s participation, vote, decision, action and
inaction, no financial benefit accrues to the officer or employee, an immediate family member,
an outside employer, or a business as defined by subsection (C)(4) and (C)(5) of this section, as a
member of any business, occupation, profession, or other group, to any greater extent than any
gain could reasonably expect to accrue to any other member of the business, occupation,
profession, or other group.

(E)  Every officer or employee who has a prohibited financial interest which
the officer or employee believes or has reason to believe may be affected by his or her
participation, vote, decision or other action taken within the scope of his or her public duties
shall disclose the precise nature and value of interest, in writing, to the governing body of the
city or city agency served by the officer or employee, and the disclosure shall be entered on the
official record of the proceedings of the governing body. The officer or employee shall refrain
from taking any action with respect to the matter that is the subject of the disclosure pursuant to
Section 7 of this ordinance.

SECTION 6. Conflicts of Interest in Contracts.

(A)  Pursuant to KRS 61.252, no officer or employee of the city or any agency
shall directly or through others undertake, execute, hold, or enjoy, in whole or in part, any
contract made, entered into, awarded, or granted by the city or a city agency, except as follows:

1. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply to
contracts entered into before an elected officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an
appointed officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an appointed officer was appointed
to a city or agency office, or before an employee was hired by the city or a city agency.
However, if any contract entered into by the city or city agency officer or employee before he or
she became a candidate, was appointed to office, or was hired as an employee, is renewable after
he or she becomes a candidate, assumes the appointed office, or is hired as an employee, then the
prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall apply to the renewal of the contract.

2. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply if
the contract is awarded after public notice and competitive bidding, unless the officer or
employee is authorized to participate in establishing the specifications, awarding the contract, or
managing contract performance after the contract is awarded. If the officer or employee has any
of the authorities set forth in the preceding sentence, then the officer or employee shall have no
interest in the contract, unless the requirements set forth in subpart (3) below are satisfied.

3. The prohibition of subsection (A) of this section shall not apply in
any case where the following requirements are satisfied:

(a) The specific nature of the contract transaction and the

nature of the officer’s or employee’s interest in the contract are publicly disclosed at a meeting of
the governing body of the city or city agency.

P. 43



(b) The disclosure is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

() A finding is made by the governing body of the city or city
agency that the contract with the officer or employee is in the best interests of the public and the
city agency because of price, limited supply, or other specific reasons.

(d) A finding is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

(B)  Any violation of this section shall constitute a Class A misdemeanor, and
upon conviction, the court may void any contract entered into as violation of this section.
Additionally, a violation of this section shall be grounds for removal from office or employment
with the city in accordance with any applicable provisions of state law and ordinances, rules or
regulations of the city.

SECTION 7. Withdrawal from Participation.

(A)  An officer or employee must refrain from acting on or discussing, formally or
informally. a matter before the city, if acting on the matter, or failing to act on the
matter, may personally or financially benefit any of the persons or entities listed
in Section 5(C) above. Such an officer or employee should join the public if the
withdrawal occurs at a public meeting or leave the room if it is a legally
conducted closed meeting (executive session) under KRS 61.810 and KRS
61.815.

(B)  Withdrawal at a meeting requires the public announcement, on the record, of the
reason for withdrawal.

(C)  Ongoing Conflict: An officer or employee whose outside employment or other
outside activity or relationship can reasonably be expected to require more than
sporadic withdrawal must resign or cease such outside employment or activity.
An officer or employee should not begin employment or an activity or
relationship that can reasonably be expected to require more than sporadic
withdrawal. If a prospective officer or employee is in such a situation, he or she
should not accept the position with the city.

(D)  Request to Withdraw: If an officer or appointed board member is requested to
withdraw from participation in a matter for the reason that he or she has a conflict

of interest, by:

1. Another member;

2. A party to the current matter; or

P. 44



Anvone else who may be affected by a decision relating to this matter, the
member must decide whether to withdraw on the official record. If the

member decides not to withdraw, the challenging member(s) may file a

complaint with the ethics board.

SECTION 8. Receipt of Gifts.

(A)No officer or employee of the city or city agency shall directly, or indirectly

through any other person or business, solicit or accept any gift having a fair
market value of more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), whether in the form
of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or
any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred
that the gift was intended to influence, or could reasonably be expected to
influence the officer or employee in the performance of his or her public
duties.

(B) Certain items are typically excluded from this provision. Examples of these

6.

items include:

Gifts received from relatives.

Gifts accepted on behalf of the city and transferred to the city.

Reasonable travel and travel-related expenses, cost of admission, food and
beverages, and entertainment furnished in connection with certain
specified public events, appearances, ceremonies, economic development
activities, training, or fact-finding trips related to official government

business.

Usual and customary loans made in the ordinary course of business.

Awards. including certificates, plaques, and commemorative tokens
presented in recognition of public service.

Informational, promotional, and educational items.

SECTION 9. Use of City Property. Equipment and Personnel.

(A)

No officer or employee of the city shall use or permit the use of any city

time, funds, personnel, equipment, or other personal or real property for the private use of any

person, unless:

1. The use is specifically authorized by a stated city policy.
2. The use is available to the general public, and then only to the

extent and upon the terms that such use is available to the general
public.

P. 45



SECTION 10. Misuse of Confidential Information.

No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall intentionally use or
disclose information acquired in the course of his or her official duties, if the primary
purpose of the use or disclosure is to further his or her personal or financial interest or
the personal or financial interest of another person, group or business. Information shall
be deemed confidential, if it is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Kentucky Open
Records Act at the time of its use or disclosure.

SECTION 11. Political Solicitation.

(A)  An officer, employee, or municipal candidate may not request, or authorize
anyone else to request, that any subordinate or potential future subordinate
participate, or not participate, in any political activity, including the making of a
campaign contribution.

(B)  An officer, employee, or municipal candidate may not engage in any political
activity for the city, while on duty, or in uniform, using city funds, supplies,
vehicles, or facilities, in uniform, or during any period of time during which he or
she is normally expected to perform services for the city, for which compensation

is paid.

SECTION 12. Patronage.

No officer or employee may promise an appointment or the use of his or her
influence to obtain an appointment to any position as a reward for any political activity
or contribution.

SECTION 13. Complicity with or Knowledge of Others' Violations.

No officer or employee may, directly or indirectly, induce, encourage, or aid
anyone to violate any provision of this code. If an officer or employee knows or has
reasonable suspicion to believe that someone has violated this code, he or she is required
to report it to the Ethics Board.

SECTION 14. Meeting Attendance.

All elected city officers and members of city boards and commissions are

expected to attend their meetings. It is a violation of this code to miss more than one-third
(1/3) of the meetings in a twelve (12) month period.

SECTION 15. Social Media.

P. 46



(A)

B)

©

D)

E)

(F)

(G)

~(H)

City officials [including members of boards, commissions, etc.] can maintain a
personal presence on social media. However, to be considered personal, there can
be no mention of their status as a city official. Any mention of their status as a
city official potentially changes the nature of the page, requiring record keeping in
accordance with the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives retention
schedule and subjecting the entire page to Open Records requests.

Elected city officials who want to interact with the community on social media in
their role as city official are required to maintain a separate account. City
officials will notify the city clerk of any official page(s) utilized. The city clerk
will maintain an updated list of official pages of city officials.

City officials shall conduct themselves professionally and as a representative of
the city.

Elected city official pages shall clearly indicate that any content posted or
submitted for posting is subject to public disclosure. Additionally, guidelines, if
any. shall be posted conspicuously on the page.

No comments shall be deleted unless in violation of posted guidelines. Deleted

comments shall be provided to the city clerk and must be saved for a time period
of not less than one vear.

City officials shall not conduct city business through their social media sites. If
receiving a specific request from a citizen, the city official shall state: “Thank you
for your question. Please email me at [official email address] or contact me at
[phone number]. Ilook forward to speaking with you.”

Elected officials shall not discuss issues pending before the commission. Elected
officials may illicit public input but shall not respond to comments. Engaging in
substantive conversations on social media could require retention of the posts and
may violate the Open Meetings Act if other elected officials are also engaging in
the discussion.

City emplovees are bound by the city’s social media policies in the City of

Franklin’s Personnel Policies and the City of Franklin’s Email, Social Media and
Electronic Communications Policy.

SECTION 16. Email.

(A)

(B)

City officials shall maintain an official email address and shall provide the email
address to the city clerk. This must be separate from their personal email account.

No city business shall occur through a personal email account.

10

P. 47



City officials shall retain emails according to the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives
schedule for emails. City officials shall direct any record keeping questions to the city clerk.

SECTION 17. Representation of Interests Before City Government.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall represent any
person or business, other than the city, in connection with any cause, proceeding, application or
other matter pending before the city or city agency.

(B)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit an employee from representing
another employee or employees where the representation is within the context of official labor
union or similar representational responsibilities.

(C) Nothing in this section shall prohibit any officer or employee from
representing himself or herself in matters concerning his or her own interests.

(D)  No elected officer shall be prohibited by this section from making any
inquiry for information on behalf of a constituent, if no compensation, reward or other thing of
value is promised to, given to, or accepted by the officer, whether directly or indirectly, in return
for the inquiry.

SECTION 18. Misuse of Confidential Information. No officer or employee of the City or
any city agency shall intentionally use or disclose information acquired in the course of his or her
official duties, if the primary purpose of the use or disclosure is to further his or her personal
financial interest or that of another person or business. Information shall be deemed confidential,
if it is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Kentucky Open Records Act, KRS 61.872 to
61.884, at the time of its use or disclosure.

SECTION 19. Post-Employment Restriction. No officer or employee of the city or city
agency shall appear or practice before the city or any city agency with respect to any matter on
which the officer or employee personally worked while in the service of the city or city agency
for a period of one (1) year after the termination of the officer’s or employee’s service with the
city or city agency.

SECTION 20. Nepotism Prohibited.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or a city agency shall advocate, recommend or
cause the:
employment;
appointment;
promotion;
transfer;
advancement of a family member to an office or position of employment
with the city or a city agency; or
advancement of an immediate family member to an office or position of
employment with the city or a city agency.

nhLN =

S

11

P. 48



(B) No office or employee of the city or a city agency shall supervise or manage the
work of an immediate family member.

(C)  No officer or employee shall participate in any action relating to the employment
or discipline of an immediate family member, except that this prohibition shall not prevent an
elected or appointed official from voting on or participating in the development of a budget
which includes compensation for a family member, provided that the immediate family member
is included only as a member of a class of persons or a group, and the immediate family member
benefits to no greater extent than any other similarly situated member of the class or group.

(D)  The prohibitions in this section shall not apply to any relationship or situation that
would violate the prohibition, but which existed prior to January 1, 1995.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

SECTION 21. Who Must File. The following classes of officers and employees of the
city and city agencies shall file an annual statement of financial interests with the Barren River
Regional Board of Ethics:

(A)  Elected city officials;

(B)  Candidates for elected city office;

(C)  Members of the city planning and zoning commission, board of adjustment, code
enforcement board, industrial board, and electric plant board;

(D)  Members of the Board of Ethics created by this ordinance; and

(E)  Non-elected officers and employees of the city and any city agency who are
authorized to make purchases of materials or services, or award contracts, leases
or agreements involving the expenditure of more than Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Dollars.

SECTION 22. When to File Statements, Amended Statements.

(A)  Pursuant to the Memorandum of Agreement between the city and the Barren
River Area Development, the initial statements of financial interests required by this section
shall be filed with the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics, c/o Barren River Area
Development District Records Administrator no later than 3:00 p.m., March 1, 1995. All
subsequent statements of financial interest shall be filed no later than 3:00 p.m. on March 1 each
year, provided that:

1. An officer or employee newly required to fill an office or position with the
city or a city agency shall file his or her initial statement no later than thirty (30) days after the
date of appointment.

2. A candidate for city office shall file his or her initial statement no later
than thirty (30) days after the date on which the person becomes a candidate for elected city

12

P. 49



office.

(B)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics may grant a reasonable extension
of time for filing a statement of financial interest for good cause shown.

(C)  In the event there is a material change in any information contained in a financial

statement that has been filed with the Board, the officer or employee shall, no later than thirty
(30) days after becoming aware of the material change, file an amended statement with the
Board.

SECTION 23. Form of Statement of Financial Interests. The statement of financial
interests shall be filed on a form prescribed by the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics.
The Board shall deliver to the city a copy of the form for each officer and employee required to
file the statement, no later than February 15 of each year. The failure to deliver the form shall
not relieve the officer or employee of the obligation to file the statement.

SECTION 24. Control and Maintenance of the Statement

(A)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics shall be the “official custodian” of
the statements of financial interests. The statements of financial interest shall be maintained by
the Board, or the Records Administrator designated by the Board as “custodian” of public
documents, available for public inspection immediately upon filing.

(B) A statement of financial interests shall be retained by the Board, or the

“custodian,” for-a-period-of five(5)-years-afterfilingprovided-that-pursuant to the Kentucky

Department of Library and Archives schedule as follows:

1. Upon the expiration of three+3) two (2) years after a person ceases to be
an officer or employee of the city or a city agency, the Board shall cause to be destroyed any
statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

2. Upon the expiration of three-3) two (2) years after any election at which a
candidate for elected city office was not elected or nominated, the Board shall cause to be
destroyed any statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

SECTION 25. Contents of the Financial Interest Statements

(A)  The statement of financial interest shall include the following information of the
preceding calendar year:

1. The name, current business address, business telephone number, and home
address of the filer.

13

P. 50



2. The title of the filer’s officer, office sought, or position of employment.

3. The occupation of the filer and the filer’s spouse or domestic partner.

4. Information that identifies each source of income of the filer and the filer’s
immediate family members exceeding five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) during the preceding
calendar year, and the nature of the income (e.g. salary, commission, dividends, retirement fund
distribution, etc.).

5. The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or member of the filer’s immediate family had at any time during the preceding calendar
year an interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%)
ownership interest or more.

6. The name and address of any business located outside of the state, if the
business has engaged in any business transactions with the city during the past three (3) years, or
which is anticipated to engage in any business transactions with the city, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had any time during the preceding calendar year an
interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%) ownership
interest or more.

7. A designation as commercial, residential, or rural, and the location of all
real property within the county, other than the filer’s primary residence, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had during the preceding calendar year an interest of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or more.

8. Each source by name and address of gifts or honoraria having an
aggregate fair market value of one hundred dollars ($100.00) or more from any single source,
excluding gifts received from family members, received by the filer or any member of the filer’s
immediate family during the preceding calendar year.

9. The name and address of any substantial debtor or creditor owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) except debts arising from the purchase of a primary
residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or used primarily for person,
family or household purposes.

10.  The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or any member of the filer’s immediate family had an interest at any time during the
preceding calendar year.

11. Each source by name and address of campaign contributions having an
agoregate fair market value of two hundred dollars ($200.00) or more from any single source,
excluding contributions received from family members, received by the filer or any member of

the filer’s immediate family during the preceding calendar year.

14

P. 51



(B)  Nothing in this section shall be construed to require any officer or employee to
disclose any specific dollar amounts nor the names of individual clients or customers of
businesses listed as sources of income.

SECTION 26. Noncompliance with Filing Requirement.

(A)  The Barren River Board of Ethics, or the Records Administrator, shall notify by
certified mail each person required to file a statement of financial interests who fails to file the
statement by the due date, files an incomplete statement, or files a statement in a form other than
prescribed by the Board. The notice shall specify the type of failure or delinquency, shall
establish a date by which the failure or delinquency shall be remedied, and shall advise the
person of the penalties for a violation.

(B)  Any person who fails or refuses to file the statement or who fails or refuses to
remedy a deficiency in the filing identified in the notice under subsection (A) within the time
period established in the notice shall be guilty of a civil offense and shall be subject to civil fine
imposed by the Board in an amount not to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per day, up to a
maximum total civil fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00). Any civil fine imposed by the Board
under this section may be recovered by the Board in a civil action in the nature of a debt if the
offender fails or refuses to pay the penalty within a prescribed time.

(C)  Any person who intentionally files a statement of financial interests which he or
she knows to contain false information or intentionally omits required information shall be guilty
of a Class A misdemeanor.

ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 27. Board of Ethics.

(A) Pursuant to the memorandum of Agreement setting forth the Barrem River
Regional Board of Ethics, all authority for the establishment of procedures for formation and
maintenance of the Barren River Board of Ethics appropriate thereto are hereby delegated
provided:

1. that the Board shall comply with all terms and conditions as set forth in
the Act establishing a Code of Ethics for cities,

2. that any hearings or related procedures shall comply with the Kentucky
Rules of Civil Procedure and the Kentucky Rules of Evidence,

3. that any regulation adopted by the Board governing its procedures shall be
consistent with the Kentucky Open Records law and,

4. that the City shall bear its proportionate share of any costs for
investigations, hearings, preparation of findings, and the issuance of any advisory opinions by
the Board,

16

P. 52



5. that no member of the Regional Board of Ethics shall hold a position in any
local government or be subject to the terms of this ordinance.

SECTION 28. Reprisals Against Persons Disclosing Violations Prohibited.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall subject to reprisal, or
directly or indirectly use, or threaten to use, any official authority or influence in any manner
whatsoever which tends to discourage, restrain, deter, prevent, interfere with, coerce, or
discriminate against any person who in good faith reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise
brings to the attention of the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics or any other agency or
official of the city or the Commonwealth any facts or information relative to an actual or
suspected violation of this ordinance.

(B)  This section shall not be construed as:

1. Prohibiting disciplinary or punitive action if an officer or employee of the
city or any city agency discloses information which he or she knows:

(a) To be false or which he or she discloses with reckless disregard for
its truth or falsity;

(b) To be exempt from required disclosure under the provisions of the
Kentucky Open Records Act, KRS 61.870 to 61.884; or

(c) [s confidential under any other provision of law.
SECTION 29. Penalties.

(A)  Except when another penalty is specifically set forth in this ordinance any officer
or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Barren River Board of Ethics to
have violated any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a civil offense and may
be subject to a civil fine imposed by the Board of Ethics not to exceed one thousand dollars
($1,000.00), which may be recovered by the city in a civil action if the offender fails to pay the
penalty within a prescribed period of time.

(B) In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under the ordinance, any
officer or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Board of Ethics to have
violated any provision of this ordinance shall forfeit to the city or city agency an amount equal to
the economic benefit or gain which the officer or the employee is determined by the Board to
have realized as a result of the violation. The amount of any forfeiture may be recovered by the
city on a civil action in the nature of debt, if the offender fails to pay the amount of the forfeiture
within a prescribed period of time.

(C) In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under this ordinance, a
finding by the Board of Ethics that an officer or employee of the city or any city agency is guilty

16

P. 53



of a violation of this ordinance shall be sufficient cause of removal, suspension, demotion, or
other disciplinary action by the executive authority of the city or city agency, or by any other
officer or agency having the power of removal or discipline. Any action to remove or discipline
any officer or employee for a violation of this ordinance shall be taken in accordance with all
applicable ordinances and regulations of the city and all applicable laws of the Commonwealth.

SECTION 31. The City of Franklin, by and through its Board of Commissioners hereby
readopts, and incorporates herein by reference that certain Memorandum of Agreement by and
between the City of Franklin and the Barren River Area Development District dated January 5,
1995, which sets forth the duties of the Barren River Regional Ethics Board.

SECTION 32. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is deemed by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this
ordinance shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 33. Conflicting Ordinances Repealed. All other ordinances and parts of
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.
SECTION 34. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take full force and effect immediately
upon publication as required by KRS 83A.060.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held

on March , 2019, and on motion made by and
seconded by , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full

discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

P. 54



ORDINANCES

P. 55



Sponsors: _Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Stewart

Second Reading: _Apr 8, 2019

Publication Date: _Apr 11, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 009

ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 53, CHAPTER 110, CHAPTER 117 AND
SECTION 95.37 OF CHAPTER 95 AND
AMENDING CHAPTER 114 IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
CODE OF ORDINANCES

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2018, through Ordinance No. 2017-022, the Board of
Commissioners of the City of Franklin adopted the codification of the general ordinances of
the City of Franklin; and

WHEREAS, it has now been determined that certain chapters are redundant or no
longer needed and therefore should be repealed and certain new additions are needed; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the City of Franklin has authorized that
Chapter 53: Fiber Optic Services; Chapter 110: General Provision; Chapter 117: Places of
Entertainment; and Section 95:37 — Regulations Concerning Street Excavations of Chapter
95: Streets and Sidewalks be repealed in their entirety and Chapter 114 shall be amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the City
of Franklin, Kentucky as follows:

1. Chapter 53: Fiber Optic Services in the City of Franklin, Kentucky Code of
Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety.

2. Chapter 110: General Provisions in the City of Franklin, Kentucky Code of
Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety.

3. Chapter 117: Places of Entertainment in the City of Franklin, Kentucky Code
of Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety.

4. Section 95:37 — Regulations Concerning Street Excavations of Chapter 95 in
the City of Franklin, Kentucky Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety.

5. Chapter 114 is amended as follows:

§ 114.001 DEFINITIONS shall be amended by deleting the two definitions as
follows:

P. 56



§ 114.003 ANNUAL BUSINESS LICENSE FEE shall be amended by deleting a new
paragraph (3) under paragraph (A) Manufacturing as follows:

(A)  Manufacturing:

(1)  Minimum license fee: $100;

2) Each and every manufacturer subject to this license fee shall pay an
annual license fee equal to the total number of employees, including salaried employees,
multiplied by $20. This fee shall be due and payable quarterly, and the number of employees
shall be defined as the weekly average of total employment for each quarter for which the
license fee is payable; and

§ 114.003 ANNUAL BUSINESS LICENSE FEE shall be amended by adding a new
paragraph (E) as follows:

(E)  Gross Receipts of $4,000 or less. Any business or business entity with gross
receipts of 84,000 or less per tax year shall not be required to purchase a business license.
Provided, however, that any business or business entity that has gross receipts of less than
84,000 per tax year shall be required to obtain a business license, at no cost, and file the
gross receipts return substantiated with the appropriate federal tax return/schedule to
affirm/prove the amount of gross receipts collected by the business or business entity.

§ 114.007 EXEMPTED MONEY RECEIPTS shall be amended by deleting paragraph
(E) as follows:

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for
any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holdings
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of Ordinance.

P. 57



All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, are, to the extent of such conflict,
hereby repealed.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held on April
8, 2019, on motion made by Commissioner and seconded by
Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full
discussion, by the following vote:

HERBERT WILLIAMS
JAMIE POWELL
BROWNIE BENNETT
WENDELL STEWART

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

Larry Dixon, Mayor

ATTEST:

Cathy Dillard, City Clerk

P. 58



ORDINANCE NO. 2019 -012

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A PRIOR ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A CODE OF
ETHICAL CONDUCT APPLICABLE TO THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE
CITY AND CITY AGENCIES

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky has enacted
legislation requiring this city to enact and enforce a code of ethics governing the conduct of city
officers and employees; and

WHEREAS, the officials of this city are committed to the operation of a city government
that manifests the highest moral and ethical standards among its officers and employees and
desire to comply with all requirements of the Commonwealth’s local government ethics law; and

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted, in 1994, an ordinance creating a code of ethical
conduct and the Board of City Commissioners deems it appropriate to amend and update this
code of ethical conduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky:

SECTION 1. Title. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “City of Franklin
Code of Ethics.”

SECTION 2. Findings. The legislative body of the City of Franklin finds and declares that:
(A)  Public office and employment with the city are public trusts.

(B)  The vitality and stability of the government of this city depend upon the
public’s confidence in the integrity of its elected and appointed officers and employees.
Whenever the public perceives a conflict between the private interests and the public duties of a
city officer or employee, that confidence is imperiled.

(C)  The government of this city has a duty to provide its citizens with
standards by which they determine whether public duties are being faithfully performed, and to
make its officers and employees aware of the standards which the citizens rightfully expect them
to comply with while conducting their duties.

SECTION 3. Purpose and Authority.

(A) It is the purpose of this ordinance to provide a method of assuring that
standards of ethical conduct and financial disclosure requirements for officers and employees of
the city shall be clearly established, uniform in their application, and enforceable, and to provide
the officers and employees of the city with advice and information concerning potential conflicts
of interest which might arise in the conduct of their public duties.

P. 59



(B) It is further the purpose of this ordinance to meet the requirements of KRS
65.003 as enacted by the 1994 Kentucky General Assembly.

(C)  This ordinance is enacted under the power vested in the city by KRS
82.082 and pursuant to requirements of KRS 65.003.

SECTION 4. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, unless the context clearly requires a
different meaning:

(A)  “Business” means any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, firm,
enterprise, franchise, association, organization, self-employed individual, holding
company, joint stock company, receivership, trust, professional service
corporation, limited liability company, or any legal entity through which business
is conducted for profit.

(B)  “Board” means the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics which is
vested by this ordinance with the responsibility of enforcing the requirements of
the city’s code of ethics.

(C)  “Candidate” means any individual who seeks nomination or election to a
city office. An individual is a candidate when the individual files a notification
and declaration for nomination for office with the county clerk or secretary of
state, or is nominated for office by a political party, or files a declaration of intent
to be a write-in candidate with the county clerk or secretary of state.

(D)  “City” refers to the City of Franklin, Kentucky.

(E) “City Agency” means any board, commission, authority, nonstock
corporation, or other entity created, either individually or jointly, by this city.

(1) “City Business” any discussion of specific city issues that go beyond
general information.

(G)  "Confidential information" means information obtained in the course of
holding public office or employment, or as a contractor to the city, which is not
available to members of the public and which the officer or employee is not
authorized to disclose, except to designated individuals or bodies, including
written and non-written information. When such information is also available
through channels open to the public, officers and employees are not prohibited
from disclosing the availability of those channels.

(H) "Consultant”" means an independent contractor or professional person. or
entity engaged by the city or advising a city officer, and in a position to influence
a city decision or action or have access to confidential information.

(D "Customer or client" means:

P. 60



1. Any person or entity to which a person or entity has supplied goods or
services during the previous 24 months, having a total value greater than
one thousand dollars ($1.000); or

2. Any person or entity to which an officer or employee's outside employer
or business has supplied goods or services during the previous 24 months,
having a total value greater than one thousand dollars ($1,000), but only if
the officer or employee knows or has reason to know the outside employer
or business supplied the goods or services.

8} "Domestic partner"” is an adult. unrelated by blood, with which an
unmarried or separated officer or employee has an exclusive committed
relationship, maintains a mutual residence, and shares basic living expenses.

(K)  “Employee” means any person, whether full-time, part-time, seasonal, or
temporary, and whether paid or unpaid, who is employed or provides service to
the city. The term “employee” shall not include any contractor or subcontractor
or any of their employees.

(L) “Family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, parent, stepparent.
child, stepchild, brother, stepbrother, sister, stepsister, mother-in-law, father-in-
law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent or grandchild.

(M)  “Immediate family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, a child or
step-child who is not emancipated and who resides in the officer’s or employee’s
household, or a person claimed by the officer or employee, or the officer’s or
employee’s spouse or domestic partner, as a dependent for tax purposes.

(N)  "Financial benefit" includes any money, service, license, permit, contract,
authorization, loan, discount, travel, entertainment, hospitality, gratuity, or any
promise of any of these, or anything else of value. This term does not include
campaign contributions authorized by law.

(0) "Financial interest” is a relationship to something such that a direct or
indirect financial benefit has been, will be, or might be received as a result of it.

(P) “Household" includes anyone whose primary residence is in the officer or
employee's home, including nonrelatives who are not rent pavers or staff.

(Q)  “Officer” means any person, whether full-time or part-time. and whether
paid or unpaid, who is one of the following:

1. Mayor;
2. City Commission Member;

P. 61



3. City Clerk:

4. City Manager;

5. Police Chief:

6. Any person who occupies a non-elected office created under KRS
83A.080: or
7. A member of the governing body of any city agency or joint body of any

osovernmental agency who has been appointed to the governing body of
the agency by the city.

(R) “Official Act” means any legislative, administrative, appointive or
discretionary act of any public official or employee of the city or any agency,
board, committee or commission thereof.

(S) “Personal benefit" includes benefits other than those that are directly
financially advantageous. These include financial benefits to immediate family
members, business associates. as well as non-financial benefits to these people
and to oneself, including such things as reputation and the success of one's career.

(1) "Personal interest" means a relationship to something such that a personal
benefit has been, will be, or might be obtained by certain action or inaction with

respect to it.

(U) _ “Social media” is understood to be content created by individuals, using
the internet. Examples of social media include Facebook. blogs, Instagram, RSS,
YouTube, Second Life, Twitter, LinkedIn, and Flickr.

V) "Subordinate" means another official or employee over whose activities an
official or emplovee has direction, supervision or control.

(W) “Substantial debtor or creditor” means any person or business owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10,000), except from debts arising from the purchase
of a primary residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or

used primarily for person, family or household purposes.

(X) _ “Transaction” means any matter, including but not limited to, contracts,
work or business with the city. the sale or purchase of real estate by the city, and
any request for zoning amendments, variances, or special permits pending before
the city, upon which a public officer or employee performs an official act or
action.

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

SECTION 5. Conflicts of Interest in General. Every officer and employee of the city and every

4

P. 62



city agency shall comply with the following standards of conduct:

(A) No officer or employee, or any immediate family member of any officer
or employee, shall have interest in a business or engage in a business, transaction, or activity,
which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of the officer’s or employee’s public
duties.

(B)  No officer or employee shall intentionally use or attempt to use his or her
official position with the city to secure unwarranted (or unsolicited) privileges or advantages for
himself or herself or others.

(C)  No officer or employee shall intentionally take or refrain from taking any
discretionary action, or agree to take or refrain from taking any discretionary action, or induce or
attempt to induce any other officer or employee to take or refrain from taking any discretionary
action, on any matter before the city in order to obtain a financial benefit for any of the
following:

The officer or employee;

A family member;

An outside employer;

Any business in which the officer or employee, or any immediate
family member has a financial interest, including but not limited
to:

sl

(a) An outside employer or business of his or hers, or of his or her
family member, or someone who works for such outside
employer or business:;

(b) A customer or client; or,

(c) A substantial debtor or creditor of his or hers, or of his or her
family member;

5. Any business with which the officer or employee or any family
member is negotiating or seeking prospective employment or other
business or professional relationship.

6. A person or entity from whom the officer or employee has received an
election campaign contribution of a total of more than two hundred
dollars ($200) during the past election cycle (this amount includes
contributions from a person's immediate family or business as well as
contributions from an entity's owners, directors, or officers, as well as

contributions to the officer or employee's party committee or
noncandidate political committee).

7. A nongovernmental civic group, social, charitable, or religious
organization of which he or she, or his or her immediate family
member, is an officer or director.

P. 63



(D)  No officer or employee shall be deemed in violation of any provision in
this section if, by reason of the officer’s or employee’s participation, vote, decision, action and
inaction, no financial benefit accrues to the officer or employee, an immediate family member,
an outside employer, or a business as defined by subsection (C)(4) and (C)(5) of this section, as a
member of any business, occupation, profession, or other group, to any greater extent than any
gain could reasonably expect to accrue to any other member of the business, occupation,
profession, or other group.

(E)  Every officer or employee who has a prohibited financial interest which
the officer or employee believes or has reason to believe may be affected by his or her
participation, vote, decision or other action taken within the scope of his or her public duties
shall disclose the precise nature and value of interest, in writing, to the governing body of the
city or city agency served by the officer or employee, and the disclosure shall be entered on the
official record of the proceedings of the governing body. The officer or employee shall refrain
from taking any action with respect to the matter that is the subject of the disclosure pursuant to
Section 7 of this ordinance.

SECTION 6. Conflicts of Interest in Contracts.

(A)  Pursuant to KRS 61.252, no officer or employee of the city or any agency
shall directly or through others undertake, execute, hold, or enjoy, in whole or in part, any
contract made, entered into, awarded, or granted by the city or a city agency, except as follows:

1. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply to
contracts entered into before an elected officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an
appointed officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an appointed officer was appointed
to a city or agency office, or before an employee was hired by the city or a city agency.
However, if any contract entered into by the city or city agency officer or employee before he or
she became a candidate, was appointed to office, or was hired as an employee, is renewable after
he or she becomes a candidate, assumes the appointed office, or is hired as an employee, then the
prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall apply to the renewal of the contract.

2. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply if
the contract is awarded after public notice and competitive bidding, unless the officer or
employee is authorized to participate in establishing the specifications, awarding the contract, or
managing contract performance after the contract is awarded. If the officer or employee has any
of the authorities set forth in the preceding sentence, then the officer or employee shall have no
interest in the contract, unless the requirements set forth in subpart (3) below are satisfied.

3. The prohibition of subsection (A) of this section shall not apply in
any case where the following requirements are satisfied:

(a) The specific nature of the contract transaction and the
nature of the officer’s or employee’s interest in the contract are publicly disclosed at a meeting of
the governing body of the city or city agency.

P. 64



(b)  The disclosure is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

(©) A finding is made by the governing body of the city or city
agency that the contract with the officer or employee is in the best interests of the public and the
city agency because of price, limited supply, or other specific reasons.

(d) A finding is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

(B)  Any violation of this section shall constitute a Class A misdemeanor, and
upon conviction, the court may void any contract entered into as violation of this section.
Additionally, a violation of this section shall be grounds for removal from office or employment
with the city in accordance with any applicable provisions of state law and ordinances, rules or
regulations of the city.

SECTION 7. Withdrawal from Participation.

(A)  An officer or employee must refrain from acting on or discussing, formally or
informally. a matter before the city. if acting on the matter, or failing to act on the
matter, may personally or financially benefit any of the persons or entities listed
in Section 5(C) above. Such an officer or employee should join the public if the
withdrawal occurs at a public meeting or leave the room if it is a legally
conducted closed meeting (executive session) under KRS 61.810 and KRS
61.815.

(B)  Withdrawal at a meeting requires the public announcement, on the record, of the
reason for withdrawal.

(C)  Ongoing Conflict: An officer or employee whose outside employment or other
outside activity or relationship can reasonably be expected to require more than
sporadic withdrawal must resign or cease such outside employment or activity.
An officer or employee should not begin employment or an activity or
relationship that can reasonably be expected to require more than sporadic
withdrawal. If a prospective officer or employee is in such a situation, he or she
should not accept the position with the city.

(D)  Request to Withdraw: If an officer or appointed board member is requested to
withdraw from participation in a matter for the reason that he or she has a conflict

of interest, by:

1. Another member;

2. A party to the current matter; or

P. 65



Anvone else who may be affected by a decision relating to this matter, the
member must decide whether to withdraw on the official record. If the

member decides not to withdraw, the challenging member(s) may file a

complaint with the ethics board.

SECTION 8. Receipt of Gifts.

(A)No officer or employee of the city or city agency shall directly, or indirectly

through any other person or business, solicit or accept any gift having a fair
market value of more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), whether in the form
of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or
any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred
that the gift was intended to influence, or could reasonably be expected to
influence the officer or employee in the performance of his or her public
duties.

(B) Certain items are typically excluded from this provision. Examples of these

6.

items include:

Gifts received from relatives.

Gifts accepted on behalf of the city and transferred to the city.

Reasonable travel and travel-related expenses, cost of admission, food and
beverages, and entertainment furnished in connection with certain
specified public events, appearances, ceremonies, economic development

activities, training, or fact-finding trips related to official government

business.

Usual and customary loans made in the ordinary course of business.

Awards, including certificates, plagues, and commemorative tokens
presented in recognition of public service.

Informational, promotional, and educational items.

SECTION 9. Use of City Property, Equipment and Personnel.

(A)

No officer or employee of the city shall use or permit the use of any city

time, funds, personnel, equipment, or other personal or real property for the private use of any

person, unless:

1. The use is specifically authorized by a stated city policy.
2. The use is available to the general public, and then only to the

extent and upon the terms that such use is available to the general
public.

P. 66



SECTION 10. Misuse of Confidential Information.

No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall intentionally use or
disclose information acquired in the course of his or her official duties, if the primary
purpose of the use or disclosure is to further his or her personal or financial interest or
the personal or financial interest of another person, group or business. Information shall
be deemed confidential, if it is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Kentucky Open
Records Act at the time of its use or disclosure.

SECTION 11. Political Solicitation.

(A)  An officer, employee, or municipal candidate may not request, or authorize
anyone else to request, that any subordinate or potential future subordinate
participate, or not participate, in any political activity, including the making of a
campaign contribution.

(B)  An officer, employee. or municipal candidate may not engage in any political
activity for the city, while on duty, or in uniform, using city funds, supplies,

vehicles, or facilities, in uniform, or during any period of time during which he or
she is normally expected to perform services for the city, for which compensation

is paid.

SECTION 12. Patronage.

No officer or employee may promise an appointment or the use of his or her
influence to obtain an appointment to any position as a reward for any political activity
or contribution. '

SECTION 13. Complicity with or Knowledge of Others' Violations.

No officer or employee may, directly or indirectly, induce, encourage, or aid
anyone to violate any provision of this code. If an officer or employee knows or has
reasonable suspicion to believe that someone has violated this code, he or she is required
to report it to the Ethics Board.

SECTION 14. Meeting Attendance.

All elected city officers and members of city boards and commissions are
expected to attend their meetings. It is a violation of this code to miss more than one-third
(1/3) of the meetings in a twelve (12) month period.

SECTION 15. Social Media.

P. 67



(A)

B)

©

D)

(E)

(F)

Q)

(H)

City officials [including members of boards, commissions, etc.] can maintain a
personal presence on social media. However, to be considered personal, there can
be no mention of their status as a city official. Any mention of their status as a
city official potentially changes the nature of the page. requiring record keeping in
accordance with the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives retention
schedule and subjecting the entire page to Open Records requests.

Elected city officials who want to interact with the community on social media in

their role as city official are required to maintain a separate account. City
officials will notify the city clerk of any official page(s) utilized. The city clerk
will maintain an updated list of official pages of city officials.

City officials shall conduct themselves professionally and as a representative of
the city.

Elected city official pages shall clearly indicate that any content posted or
submitted for posting is subject to public disclosure. Additionally. guidelines, if
any. shall be posted conspicuously on the page.

No comments shall be deleted unless in violation of posted guidelines. Deleted
comments shall be provided to the city clerk and must be saved for a time period
of not less than one year.

City officials shall not conduct city business through their social media sites. If
receiving a specific request from a citizen, the city official shall state: “Thank you
for your question. Please email me at [official email address] or contact me at
[phone number]. Ilook forward to speaking with you.”

Elected officials shall not discuss issues pending before the commission. Elected
officials may illicit public input but shall not respond to comments. Engaging in
substantive conversations on social media could require retention of the posts and

may violate the Open Meetings Act if other elected officials are also engaging in

the discussion.

City employees are bound by the city’s social media policies in the City of

Franklin’s Personnel Policies and the City of Franklin’s Email, Social Media and

Electronic Communications Policy.

SECTION 16. Email.

(A)

(B)

City officials shall maintain an official email address and shall provide the email
address to the city clerk. This must be separate from their personal email account.

No city business shall occur through a personal email account.

10

P. 68



City officials shall retain emails according to the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives
schedule for emails. City officials shall direct any record keeping questions to the city clerk.

SECTION 17. Representation of Interests Before City Government.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall represent any
person or business, other than the city, in connection with any cause, proceeding, application or
other matter pending before the city or city agency.

(B)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit an employee from representing
another employee or employees where the representation is within the context of official labor
union or similar representational responsibilities.

(C)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit any officer or employee from
representing himself or herself in matters concerning his or her own interests.

(D)  No elected officer shall be prohibited by this section from making any
inquiry for information on behalf of a constituent, if no compensation, reward or other thing of
value is promised to, given to, or accepted by the officer, whether directly or indirectly, in return
for the inquiry.

SECTION 18. Misuse of Confidential Information. No officer or employee of the City or
any city agency shall intentionally use or disclose information acquired in the course of his or her
official duties, if the primary purpose of the use or disclosure is to further his or her personal
financial interest or that of another person or business. Information shall be deemed confidential,
if it is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Kentucky Open Records Act, KRS 61.872 to
61.884, at the time of its use or disclosure.

SECTION 109. Post-Employment Restriction. No officer or employee of the city or city
agency shall appear or practice before the city or any city agency with respect to any matter on
which the officer or employee personally worked while in the service of the city or city agency
for a period of one (1) year after the termination of the officer’s or employee’s service with the
city or city agency.

SECTION 20. Nepotism Prohibited.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or a city agency shall advocate, recommend or
cause the:

1. employment;

2. appointment;

3. promotion;

4, transfer;

5. advancement of a family member to an office or position of employment

with the city or a city agency; or
6. advancement of an immediate family member to an office or position of
employment with the city or a city agency.

1"

P. 69



(B)  No office or employee of the city or a city agency shall supervise or manage the
work of an immediate family member.

(C)  No officer or employee shall participate in any action relating to the employment
or discipline of an immediate family member, except that this prohibition shall not prevent an
elected or appointed official from voting on or participating in the development of a budget
which includes compensation for a family member, provided that the immediate family member
is included only as a member of a class of persons or a group, and the immediate family member
benefits to no greater extent than any other similarly situated member of the class or group.

(D)  The prohibitions in this section shall not apply to any relationship or situation that
would violate the prohibition, but which existed prior to January 1. 1995.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

SECTION 21. Who Must File. The following classes of officers and employees of the
city and city agencies shall file an annual statement of financial interests with the Barren River
Regional Board of Ethics:

(A)  Elected city officials;

(B)  Candidates for elected city office;

(C)  Members of the city planning and zoning commission, board of adjustment, code
enforcement board, industrial board, and electric plant board;

(D)  Members of the Board of Ethics created by this ordinance; and

(E)  Non-elected officers and employees of the city and any city agency who are
authorized to make purchases of materials or services, or award contracts, leases
or agreements involving the expenditure of more than Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Dollars.

SECTION 22. When to File Statements, Amended Statements.

(A)  Pursuant to the Memorandum of Agreement between the city and the Barren
River Area Development, the initial statements of financial interests required by this section
shall be filed with the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics, c/o Barren River Area
Development District Records Administrator no later than 3:00 p.m., March 1, 1995. All
subsequent statements of financial interest shall be filed no later than 3:00 p.m. on March 1 each
year, provided that:

1. An officer or employee newly required to fill an office or position with the
city or a city agency shall file his or her initial statement no later than thirty (30) days after the
date of appointment.

2. A candidate for city office shall file his or her initial statement no later
than thirty (30) days after the date on which the person becomes a candidate for elected city
12

P. 70



office.

(B)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics may grant a reasonable extension
of time for filing a statement of financial interest for good cause shown.

(C©)  Inthe event there is a material change in any information contained in a financial

statement that has been filed with the Board, the officer or employee shall, no later than thirty
(30) days after becoming aware of the material change, file an amended statement with the

Board.

SECTION 23. Form of Statement of Financial Interests. The statement of financial
interests shall be filed on a form prescribed by the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics.
The Board shall deliver to the city a copy of the form for each officer and employee required to
file the statement, no later than February 15 of each year. The failure to deliver the form shall
not relieve the officer or employee of the obligation to file the statement.

SECTION 24. Control and Maintenance of the Statement

(A)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics shall be the “official custodian” of
the statements of financial interests. The statements of financial interest shall be maintained by
the Board, or the Records Administrator designated by the Board as “custodian” of public
documents, available for public inspection immediately upon filing.

(B) A statement of financial interests shall be retained by the Board, or the

“custodian,” fer-a-peried-offive(5)-years-after-filingprovided-that—pursuant to the Kentucky

Department of Library and Archives schedule as follows:

1. Upon the expiration of three-3) two (2) years after a person ceases to be
an officer or employee of the city or a city agency, the Board shall cause to be destroyed any
statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

2. Upon the expiration of three-(3) two (2) years after any election at which a
candidate for elected city office was not elected or nominated, the Board shall cause to be
destroyed any statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

SECTION 25. Contents of the Financial Interest Statements

(A)  The statement of financial interest shall include the following information of the
preceding calendar year:

1. The name, current business address, business telephone number, and home
address of the filer.

13
P. 71



2. The title of the filer’s officer, office sought, or position of employment.

3. The occupation of the filer and the filer’s spouse or domestic partner.

4. Information that identifies each source of income of the filer and the filer’s
immediate family members exceeding five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) during the preceding
calendar year, and the nature of the income (e.g. salary, commission, dividends, retirement fund
distribution, etc.).

5. The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or member of the filer’s immediate family had at any time during the preceding calendar
year an interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%)
ownership interest or more.

6. The name and address of any business located outside of the state, if the
business has engaged in any business transactions with the city during the past three (3) years, or
which is anticipated to engage in any business transactions with the city, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had any time during the preceding calendar year an
interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%) ownership
interest or more.

7. A designation as commercial, residential, or rural, and the location of all
real property within the county, other than the filer’s primary residence, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had during the preceding calendar year an interest of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or more.

8. Each source by name and address of gifts or honoraria having an
aggregate fair market value of one hundred dollars ($100.00) or more from any single source,
excluding gifts received from family members, received by the filer or any member of the filer’s
immediate family during the preceding calendar year.

9. The name and address of any substantial debtor or creditor owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) except debts arising from the purchase of a primary
residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or used primarily for person,
family or household purposes.

10.  The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or any member of the filer’s immediate family had an interest at any time during the
preceding calendar year.

11. Each source by name and address of campaign contributions having an
aggregate fair market value of two hundred dollars ($200.00) or more from any single source,
excluding contributions received from family members, received by the filer or any member of
the filer’s immediate family during the preceding calendar vear.

14

P. 72



(B)  Nothing in this section shall be construed to require any officer or employee to
disclose any specific dollar amounts nor the names of individual clients or customers of
businesses listed as sources of income.

SECTION 26. Noncompliance with Filing Requirement.

(A)  The Barren River Board of Ethics, or the Records Administrator, shall notify by
certified mail each person required to file a statement of financial interests who fails to file the
statement by the due date, files an incomplete statement, or files a statement in a form other than
prescribed by the Board. The notice shall specify the type of failure or delinquency, shall
establish a date by which the failure or delinquency shall be remedied, and shall advise the
person of the penalties for a violation.

(B)  Any person who fails or refuses to file the statement or who fails or refuses to
remedy a deficiency in the filing identified in the notice under subsection (A) within the time
period established in the notice shall be guilty of a civil offense and shall be subject to civil fine
imposed by the Board in an amount not to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per day, up to a
maximum total civil fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00). Any civil fine imposed by the Board
under this section may be recovered by the Board in a civil action in the nature of a debt if the
offender fails or refuses to pay the penalty within a prescribed time.

(C)  Any person who intentionally files a statement of financial interests which he or
she knows to contain false information or intentionally omits required information shall be guilty
of a Class A misdemeanor.

ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 27. Board of Ethics.

(A)  Pursuant to the memorandum of Agreement setting forth the Barren River
Regional Board of Ethics, all authority for the establishment of procedures for formation and
maintenance of the Barren River Board of Ethics appropriate thereto are hereby delegated
provided:

1. that the Board shall comply with all terms and conditions as set forth in
the Act establishing a Code of Ethics for cities,

2. that any hearings or related procedures shall comply with the Kentucky
Rules of Civil Procedure and the Kentucky Rules of Evidence,

3. that any regulation adopted by the Board governing its procedures shall be
consistent with the Kentucky Open Records law and,

4. that the City shall bear its proportionate share of any costs for

investigations, hearings, preparation of findings, and the issuance of any advisory opinions by
the Board,

15

P. 73



5. that no member of the Regional Board of Ethics shall hold a position in any
local government or be subject to the terms of this ordinance.

SECTION 28. Reprisals Against Persons Disclosing Violations Prohibited.

(A) No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall subject to reprisal, or
directly or indirectly use, or threaten to use, any official authority or influence in any manner
whatsoever which tends to discourage, restrain, deter, prevent, interfere with, coerce, or
discriminate against any person who in good faith reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise
brings to the attention of the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics or any other agency or
official of the city or the Commonwealth any facts or information relative to an actual or
suspected violation of this ordinance.

(B)  This section shall not be construed as:

1. Prohibiting disciplinary or punitive action if an officer or employee of the
city or any city agency discloses information which he or she knows:

(@ To be false or which he or she discloses with reckless disregard for
its truth or falsity;

’ (b)  To be exempt from required disclosure under the provisions of the
Kentucky Open Records Act, KRS 61.870 to 61.884; or

(©) Is confidential under any other provision of law.

SECTION 29. Penalties.

(A)  Except when another penalty is specifically set forth in this ordinance any officer
or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Barren River Board of Ethics to
have violated any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a civil offense and may
be subject to a civil fine imposed by the Board of Ethics not to exceed one thousand dollars
($1,000.00), which may be recovered by the city in a civil action if the offender fails to pay the
penalty within a prescribed period of time.

(B) In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under the ordinance, any
officer or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Board of Ethics to have
violated any provision of this ordinance shall forfeit to the city or city agency an amount equal to
the economic benefit or gain which the officer or the employee is determined by the Board to
have realized as a result of the violation. The amount of any forfeiture may be recovered by the
city on a civil action in the nature of debt, if the offender fails to pay the amount of the forfeiture
within a prescribed period of time.

(C)  In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under this ordinance, a
finding by the Board of Ethics that an officer or employee of the city or any city agency is guilty

16

P. 74



of a violation of this ordinance shall be sufficient cause of removal, suspension, demotion, or
other disciplinary action by the executive authority of the city or city agency, or by any other
officer or agency having the power of removal or discipline. Any action to remove or discipline
any officer or employee for a violation of this ordinance shall be taken in accordance with all
applicable ordinances and regulations of the city and all applicable laws of the Commonwealth.

SECTION 31. The City of Franklin, by and through its Board of Commissioners hereby

readopts, and incorporates herein by reference that certain Memorandum of Agreement by and
between the City of Franklin and the Barren River Area Development District dated January 5,
1995, which sets forth the duties of the Barren River Regional Ethics Board.

SECTION 32. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is deemed by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this
ordinance shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 33. Conflicting Ordinances Repealed. All other ordinances and parts of
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.
SECTION 34. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take full force and effect immediately
upon publication as required by KRS 83A.060.

FIRST READING

SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held

on March , 2019, and on motion made by and
seconded by , the foregoing ordinance was adopted, after full

discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK -
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

P. 75



